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COUNT ONE

(Conspiracy - Title 18, U.S.C. §1349)
- At all times material to this Indictment:
A. Defendants

1. CARLOS PAUL GONZALEZ and KEN RUSSELL BROWDER operated in
the Houston, Texas area under many business names including but not limited to
Advantage C& R Funding Group, GP, LLC, First Advantage Funding Group, CG
Funding Group, LLC and Home Consultants, Inc. (HCI) among others.

2. JANNICE BONNER worked at Fidelity National Title Insurance Company and
American Title Company in Houston, Texas closing real estate transactions involving
residential properties and acting as an Escrow officer.

3. MACHELL HALSTEAD worked at StarTex Title Company in Houston, Texas

closing real estate transactions involving residential properties and acting as an Escrow
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Officer.

B. Residential Real Estate Closings

4. The Transaction that is the subject of a residential real estate closing
(“Closing”) involves the purchase and sale of real property between two parties, the
“Buyer” and the “Seller”. The Buyer is an individual or entity who, in a “Cash
Transaction,” provides his own funds to pay 100% of the sales price, or, in a “Loan
Transaction,” obtains the funding from a lending institution (the “Lender”), to purchase
the real estate, which has approved the Buyer/Borrower (hereinafter “Borrower”) for a
residential mortgage loan for up to 100% of the sales price. The Seller is an individual or
enfity who owns the property that is the subject of the transaction.

5. The documents used to apply for a real estate mortgage loan are collected by
loan officers and loan processors at the mortgage broker’s office and transmitted to the
Lender by United States mail and/or by commercial interstate carrier such as Airborne
Express. These documents include, but are not limited to:

a. The Uniform Loan Application executed by the Borrower
. Borrower’s credit report

. Verification of Employment

d. Verification of Rent or Mortgage

e. Lease agreements
f. Verification of Deposit
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6. The Title Companies’ Escrow Officers are also responsible for depositing the
monetary instruments and funds provided by the Borrower and funds wire transferred by

- the Lender or on its behalf to the Title Companies’ bank account (the “Escrow Account™),
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and, when authorized by the parties to the transaction and the Lender, for disbursing the
funds from the Escrow Account to various individuals and entities as detailed on the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development Settlement Statement (hereinafter HUD-
1 Settlement Statement).

C. The Conspiracy

7. From in or about January 2002 and continuing through, on or about November
1, 2005 in the Southern District of Texas, and elsewhere, the defendants,
CARLOS PAUL GONZALEZ
KEN RUSSELL BROWDER
JANNICE BONNER
and
MACHELL HALSTEAD
did knowingly conspire and agree with at least one other person to commit the following
“offenses against the United States:
a. To knowingly devise and intend to devise a scheme and artifice to
defraud, and for obtaining money and property by means of false and
fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, and to knowingly use
and cause to be used the United States mails and private and commercial
interstate carriers for the purpose of executing the scheme and artifice to
defraud, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1341;

b.  To knowingly devise and intend to devise a scheme and artifice to

defraud, and for obtaining money and property by means of false and



fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, and to knowingly use
and cause to be used interstate wire communications facilities in carrying
out the scheme to def:raud, in violation of Title 18, United States Code,
Section 1343;

D. Manner and Means of the Sgheme

It was a part of the conspiracy that:

8. CARLOS PAUL GONZALEZ and KEN RUSSELL BROWDER, and their
coconspirators and agents would and did locate real estate (the “Properﬁes”) in fhe
Houston, Texas area, frequently Properties for sale by new home builders.

9. CARLOS PAUL GONZALEZ and KEN RUSSELL BROWDER Woul_d and
did recruit, solicit and compensate individuals with good credit to act as Borrowers in
applications for residential mortgage loans to purchase one or more of the Properties.

10. CARLOS PAUL GONZALEZ and KEN RUSSELL BROWDER, and their
coconspirators and agents knew and intended that each Borrower would and did use and
allow his or her name and other personal and financial information to be used and
submitted to a Lender for the purpose of pretending and falsely representing that the
Borrower was able to meet the financial obligations of the loan and had the incentive to
do so.

11. CARLOS PAUL GONZALEZ and KEN RUSSELL BROWDER, and their

coconspirators and agents would and did act as mortgage loan officers assisting



Borrowers in applying for residential mortgage loans.

12. CARLOS PAUL GONZALEZ and KEN RUSSELL BROWDER, and their
coconspirators and agents would and did cause to be completed Uniform Residential
Loan Applications in the names of the Borrowers in an attempt to obtain financing of the
Property’s sales price which applications included false representations including the
Borrower’s plan to occupy the Property as their primary residence, a pretense and false
representation that CARLOS PAUL GONZALEZ, KEN RUSSELL BROWDER and
their coconspirators knew was material to the Lenders’ decisions to grant and fund the
loans.

13. CARLOS PAUL GONZALEZ and KEN RUSSELL BROWDER, and their
coconspirators and agents would and did prepare, authorize, disseminate, transmit and
cause to be transmitted through the United States mail and commércial interstate carriers,
such as Airborne Express, and through interstate wire communications, to individuals and
entities, including Lenders and their agents, false and fraudulent statements and other
information, including but not limited to the value and ownership of the Properties, the
ability and incentive of each Borrower to repay the loan, including the pretense that the
Borrower intended to occupy the Property as his or her principle residence, all of which
the Defendants and their coconspirators knew and had reason to believe would be
material to the Lender’s decisions to fund the mortgage loan and under what conditions.

14. JANNICE BONNER and MACHELL HALSTEAD prepared Closing



documents, in particular, HUD-1 Settlement Statements, for the closing of real estate
transactions.

15. JANNICE BONNER and MACHELL HALSTEAD would and did pre?are
two HUD-1 Settlement Statements for certain real estate transactions. One HUD-1
Settlement Statement would and did reflect the Seller was selling the property to
CARLOS PAUL GONZALEZ or KEN RUSSELL BROWDER under the name
Advantage CR Funding Group LLC or CG Funding Group LLC in a cash transaction for
a specific price. The second HUD-1 Settlement Statement WOIﬂd and did reflect the
Seller was selling the Property to the Borrower in a loan transaction at a higher price.

16. JANNICE BONNER and MACHELL HALSTEAD would and did cause the
first HUD-1 Settlement Statement to be provided to the Seller an.d the second HUD-1
Settlement Statement to be sent to the Lender as part the documentation required by the
Lender before funding the residential mortgage loan.

17. CARLOS PAUL GONZALEZ and KEN RUSSELL BROWDER would and
did sign real estate contracts as the buyer in Cash Transactions to purchase residential
property from the Seller at an agreed price.

18. CARLOS PAUL GONZALEZ and KEN RUSSELL BROWDER would and
did cause Family Residential Resale Contracts for loan transactions to purchase the same
residential Property as in the Cash Transaction, to be prepared in the name of the Seller
and the Borrower for a significantly higher sales prices and caused that contract to be
signed and presented to the Lénder as part of the documentation to obtain a residential

mortgage loan.






